NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING

Monday, 18th August, 2025, 2.30 pm - Alexandra House, 10 Station
Road N22 7TR (watch the live meeting here)

Cabinet Member: Councillor Zena Brabazon

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or
reported on. By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area,
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images
and sound recordings.

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

3. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business.
(Late items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item
where they appear).

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is

considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest

becomes apparent, and
|
Haringey
LONDON


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc1ODQ4ZmUtNTZlZi00MTkyLWFhYmItMzZkMDVjODIzYmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22c971c40c-7ebf-4dd5-b59b-20f5da35a41f%22%7d

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / QUESTIONS

6. LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN HARINGEY COUNCIL AND ST MARY'S
INFANT SCHOOL (PAGES 1 - 8)

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Item 8 is likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public be
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local
Government Act 1985); paras 3 and 5, namely information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

8. EXEMPT LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN HARINGEY COUNCIL AND ST
MARY'S INFANT SCHOOL (PAGES 9 - 126)

Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager
Tel — 020 8489 2929

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk

Fiona Alderman
Director of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ

Friday, 08 August 2025



Page 1 Agenda Item 6

Report for: Cabinet Member Decision
Item number: To be added by the Committee Section
Title: Legal Agreement between Haringey Council and St Mary’s

Infant School

Report
authorised by: Ann Graham, Corporate Director Children's Services
Lead Officer: Caroline Brain, Director CYP Commissioning & Programmes

Ward(s) affected: All
Report for Key Decision:
1. Describe the issue under consideration.

1.1 Haringey Children Service’'s Team secured £7m of DfE Capital funding, alongside
HNPCA contribution of £3.2m and other LA contributions of £2.2m, totalling £12.4m to
develop education provision for children and young people with special education needs
and disabilities (SEND) as part of the Safety Valve Programme.

1.2 This scheme is one of the six of the original schemes approved by Cabinet on the 6"
of February 2024, each provision to be delivered within the £12.4m Safety Valve
Programme Funding envelope - refer to background paper (Haringey Safety Valve
Programme SEND Resources Provision Cabinet Paper 2023).

1.3 This paper focuses on St Mary’s Infant School site, which will be operated as a satellite
site by Park View Secondary School. This will enable the Council to create the 34 key stage
3/4, Social, Emotional & Mental Health (SEMH) resource provision places.

1.4 Cabinet approval is required for the signing of a funding agreement, whereby the
London Diocesan Board for Schools (LDBS) will surrender all occupational rights and
interests in the St Mary’s Church Lane Infant site (“Church Lane Site”) and any claims to
call forth the statutory transfer of the site under the Schools and Framework Act 1998. The
Council in return for this surrender will provide funding towards LDBS for the value amount
(see exempt appendix one), this is for the expansion of St Mary’s Junior School Site at
Rectory Road (“Rectory Road Site”) This will allow the infant pupils to vacate the Church
Lane site, allowing the Council to take possession on a permanent basis for the programme
team to build the required SEN provision.

1.5 The Councils’ interests are protected as the Church Lane Site will be surrendered on
the signing of the funding agreement along with the caretaker’'s house also located within
the Church Lane Site. The Council will then immediately grant a licence back to allow the
school to remain on the Church Lane site. The funding value for site surrender as detailed
will be released in two instalments, the first instalment will be subject to condition precedents

1


https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s144039/Main%20report%20Safety%20Valve.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s144039/Main%20report%20Safety%20Valve.pdf

Page 2

will be initially released to enable LDBS to complete their pre-application work (see exempt
appendix one). The remaining funding will be released in arrears monthly according to
evidence provided by the LDBS of works completed in that monthly period. The retention
will be paid when the Church Lane Site is entirely vacated under the licence.

1.6 The LDBS has confirmed they have the remaining balance will be provided by the
Grieg Trust for the development costs for the completion of the works at the Rectory Road
Site and are not just solely relying on the agreed funding.

1.7. The Council would then undertake phase two works to reconfigure the Church Lane
site upon vacant possession whereby Haringey’s business as usual procurement rules
would apply. The cost of delivering the site surrender and the capital alteration works at
Church Lane site is detailed in the (exempt appendix one,) including the full costs of the
funding agreement. This outline proposal has already been approved by Cabinet. However,
this paper is solely concerned with the presenting the detail of this specific scheme
comprising the site surrender of the Church Lane site and the release of the detailed
costings in the (exempt appendix one) to the LDBS under the funding agreement as
described in this report.

1.8 The central aim of the programme is to ensure that the council supports children with
SEND within borough, close to home and wider support networks. From a financial
standpoint the failure to move forward with the project would continue to increase pressure
on the high needs block, with students being placed out of borough at a high cost.

. Recommendations
2.1 The Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families authorises the Council:

2.1.1 To agree and enter into the funding agreement between the Council, the London
Diocesan Board for Schools and the Governing Body and/or Trustees of the St
Mary’s Church of England Primary School in the agreed form annexed to Part B
(exempt) of this report.

2.3 Alternative options considered.

2.4 Do Nothing — If the Council did not proceed with the capital schemes as outlined the
High Needs Block would continue to come under sustained pressure. In academic years
27/28 and 28/29 the cost to the service would be approx. £2.5m.

2.5 To commence the site surrender as recommend in this document. The new provision
at St Marys Church of England Primary (run by Park View) once scaled will provide an
avoidance between 27/28 and 28/29 of £1.757.457. This figure has been calculated (see
table one) once the Councils placement costs are deducted, and the mobilisation payment
provided to Park View in the initial scaling up period. This cost avoidance alone covers the
cost of the site surrender. The St Marys site has further potential for cost avoidance in future
years to scale up from 34 places to 42 which provides further flexibility within the system if
required.

Table One: Resource provisions.




Page 3

Start date for | End date for
. Number .
Provision of places pupils places to be
P (phasing) filled

Secondary and post 16 SEMH 34 Sept — 2025 Sept — 28/29
Park View Secondary school
Cumulative Cost Avoidance £1,757,457
27/28 to 28/29

2.6 Procurement for a New Build — This option has been discounted due to a high-cost
analysis providing a conversative estimate of £6m. This has been based upon, high-level
feasibility studies conducted on projects which have provided places on a smaller scale.

3. Background Information

Key Programme developments

3.1 In February 2023 Children’s Services created an expression of interest process,
inviting applications from both primary and secondary schools for the capital investment
allocated as part of the Safety Valve Programme to run SEND resource provisions.

3.2 By the end of March 2023, the project team received several expressions of interest
(EQOI) from both primary and secondary schools. The project team then mobilised a
moderation group comprising of independent representatives from our local Integrated Care
Board, parent, and carer representatives from SEND Power, and colleagues from
Haringey’s Capital Projects and Property team.

3.3 Following the moderation, the team selected the most appropriate schools based upon
the needs of children in the borough, the ability to deliver a high-quality curriculum and each
school’s financial sustainability.

3.4 Of the two secondary schools selected Park View Secondary School was chosen to
provide the 34 SEMH places required by the Safety Valve Programme. The project team
approached St Mary’s Church of England Primary School to explore if the school would be
willing to merge the Church Lane Infants’ site onto the St Mary’s Junior site, freeing up the
former for use as a Safety Valve unit. This presented benefits for both parties: it reduces
the long-term cost pressures on the school team at St Mary’s due to falling school rolls,
while providing vacant possession of a fit for purpose site, requiring minor reconfiguration
to prepare the site for SEND secondary cohort needs.

3.5 Once this proposal was presented to St Mary’s, the project team visited the site at the
Infant site to assess its viability for the Safety Valve Capital Programme, mapping the space
allocation in accordance with the DfE’s SEND Building Bulletin 104 guidelines. The team
also sought the input of an independent architectural specialist who confirmed the site was
suitable for the proposed use. This proposal was set out in the cabinet paper presented on
6th February 2024.



Page 4

3.6 Contingency has been set aside for the reconfiguration of the Infant’s site at Church
Lane for SEN use. The main internal works to be undertaken are the replacement of existing
toilets with age-appropriate facilities, new furniture for older pupils, and additional door
access controls throughout. The playground equipment will need to be removed, and the
surfaces made good. The overall fabric of the building is in good condition, but there may
be some items that require replacement or improvement; hence the contingency being held.

3.7 The overall cost of delivering the scheme is, therefore, estimated and detailed in
(exempt appendix one) including the full costs of the funding agreement and capital
alterations. If the equivalent 34 SEMH school places was delivered as part of a new build,
the estimated total cost of the scheme would be c. £3.7m, based on a gross total area of
924m? (calculated using DfE’s space guidance within Building Bulletin 104) and a total
outturn cost of £4000 per m?, this does not take into to account the purchasing of land an
over conservative estimate for a new build would be £6m. The use of the St Mary’s Infant
site does, therefore, offer better value for money than building a new facility on a council-
owned site elsewhere, assuming sufficient space was even available.

3.8 To ensure that schools remain updated and aware of the direction of travel for the
project, the Programme and Commissioning Team, Capital Projects Property Team and
Finance Team have all worked across departmental barriers with a collaborative approach
on the preparation of each of the schemes. Schools are kept fully informed via site specific
sub-groups, which in turn report to the Children and Young People’s Capital Board, chaired
by the Corporate Director of Children’s Services.

4. Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2024-2026 High level Strategic
outcomes

4.1 The objectives of the Safety Valve programme are aligned with the priorities within
Haringey’s Corporate Delivery Plan 2024-2026 specifically:

Theme 3: Children and young people

o Outcome 1: Best Start in Life — The first few years of every child’s life will give them
the long-term foundation to thrive.

o Outcome 2 Happy Childhoods - All children across the borough will be happy and
healthy as they grow up, feeling safe and secure in their family networks and
communities.

o Outcome 3 Successful Futures - Every young person, whatever their background, has
a pathway to success for the future.

4.2 This work contributes to Haringey’s SEND Strategy 2022- 2025, which contains 5
priorities, of which Priority One and Priority Two identify respectively the need to support
children at the earliest opportunity to access the intervention they need to achieve and
thrive and ‘Wherever possible, we will meet the needs of Haringey’s children within
Haringey’. This also links to priority two within Haringey Early Years Strategy 2022 - 2026:
Every child should be able to have access to the high-quality inclusive provision that is
tailored to their needs.

5. Carbon and Climate Change



Page 5

5.1 The Council has set the date for a zero-carbon deadline of 2027, including core council
operational buildings and all transport-related activities undertaken by the Council in the
delivery of core services. The rest of the buildings from which the Council delivers services
and is directly responsible for their operation (such as schools) will be net zero carbon by
2041. This will apply to the resource provisions outlined in this cabinet report.

5.2 The council will continue to aim to reduce its overall energy consumption and will
monitor its environmental performance, with attempt to reduce revenue spend on energy.
Key partners which are required to deliver this vision include providers of currently
outsourced services and other members of the council’s external supply chain.

. Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance (procurement), Director of Legal
and Governance, Equalities)

6.1 Finance

The investment proposed in this report of (exempt appendix one) is included in the capital
funding plans for the Safety Valve programme that will support delivery of additional in
borough SEMH places as set out in the safety valve agreement with the DfE that expects
to eliminate the accumulated deficit on the High Needs Block by March 2028.

6.2 Procurement

Strategic Procurement note the contents of this report and confirm there are no procurement
implications in Cabinet approving the recommendations stated in Paragraph 3 above, as
property transactions and funding agreements sit outside of the Procurement Act 2023.

6.3 Legal

6.3.1 The Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) was consulted in the
preparation of the report.

6.3.2 This report seeking authority to enter into the funding agreement with the London
Diocesan Board for Schools and the Governing Body and/or Trustees of the St Mary’s
Church of England Primary School. Under Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council
has a general power of competence and may enter into grant funding agreements in
accordance with recommendation 2.1.1.

6.3.3 Pursuant to the provisions of the Council’s Contract Standing Order (CSO) 21.06 and
in accordance with CSO 2.01(c), Cabinet has authority to approve the entering into of an
agreement for the award of a grant to an external body where the value of the grant is
£500,000 or more and as such the recommendation in paragraph 3.1.1 requesting approval
from Cabinet to enter into grant funding agreement with the London Diocesan Board for
Schools and the Governing Body and/or Trustees of the St Mary’s Church of England
Primary School for (see exempt appendix one) is in line with the provisions of the Council’s
CSO.



Page 6

6.3.4 It is important that any grant funding agreement that is entered into by the Council
contains clawback clauses that will enable the Council to clawback any funding from the
recipient where the conditions of the funding are not adhered to

6.3.5 Paragraph 1.4 of this report provides that the Council will enter into a deed of surrender
with the LBDS and the Governing Body of the School on entering into the funding
agreement, upon which all rights and interests in the Church Lane Site will be released to
the Council. The surrender will include the school’s statutory right to require the Council to
transfer the freehold interest in the site under the Schools Standard and Framework Act
1998. This is not an acquisition for the purposes of section 120 of the Local Government
Act 1972 since the freehold interest already sits with the Council but a surrender of rights
and interests by the LBDS and the School. The Council’s authority to enter into the deed of
surrender will be authorised under recommendation 3.1.1 as an associated document and
annex to the funding agreement.

6.3.6 Paragraph 1.5 of this report provides that the Council will enter into a licence to occupy
and an extension of the licence with the Governing Body and/or Trustees of the St Mary’s
Church of England Primary School to allow them to remain on the Church Lane Site
following the surrender and for the duration of the works. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011
gives local authorities a general power of competence, this includes entering licences to
occupy. The Council’s authority to enter into the licence to occupy and any extension, will
be authorised under recommendation 3.1.1 as an associated document annex to the
funding agreement.

6.3.7 The Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) sees no legal reasons
preventing the approval of the recommendation in the report.

. Equality
The council has a Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under the Equality Act (2010) to have
due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected
characteristics and people who do not

e [Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not

The three parts of the duty apply to the following protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and sexual orientation.
Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the duty.

Although it is not enforced in legislation as a protected characteristic, Haringey Council
treats socioeconomic status as a local protected characteristic.

e The decision in this paper is to create a SEMH resource provision for 34 school
places on the site of St Mary’s Infant School, which will act as a satellite site of
Park View Secondary School. This resource provision will have a positive impact
on the community and young people in the west of the borough.

6



Page 7

e The provision will provide targeted support for pupils with SEMH while keeping
them in mainstream schools. It is believed this will deliver better educational
outcomes to the targeted cohort and benefit young people, especially those with
special needs and disabilities.

e The report highlights the increase in pupils with SEMH west of the borough, with
wards such as Fortis Green, Alexandra Park and Muswell Hill that saw an
increase of 221%, 140% and 188% between 2020 and 2025, respectively. It is
therefore anticipated that this provision will help towards bridging the gap in
equitable outcomes for young people with disabilities.

e The report also acknowledges that there is an increased need for a SEMH
provision for primary school pupils, however a project is underway to create a 10
place SEMH provision at Alexandra Primary which will address this need.

e Other findings within the EQIA found that children of White British and Black
British/Caribbean backgrounds are disproportionately represented in the SEMH
cohort. The provision would therefore also benefit those young people of ethnic
minority background.

8. Use of Appendices

Appendix One: Exempt Information

Appendix Two: contains the Equality Impact Assessment

Appendix Three: Background Paper: Safety Valve Programme Cabinet Paper 13" of
September 2022

Appendix Four: Background Paper: Haringey Safety Valve Programme SEND Resource
Provision Cabinet Report

Further supplementary information regarding the Safety Valve Programme Update can be
viewed on the council’s website. A hyperlink is provided here to the web page -> here.


https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s134962/10_Haringey%20Safety%20Valve%20Programme%20Cabinet%2013%20Sept%202022_%20003%201.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s134962/10_Haringey%20Safety%20Valve%20Programme%20Cabinet%2013%20Sept%202022_%20003%201.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s144039/Main%20report%20Safety%20Valve.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s144039/Main%20report%20Safety%20Valve.pdf
mailto:https://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/local-offer/about-local-offer/local-offer-news/haringey-safety-valve-programme

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Legal Agreement between Haringey Council and St Mary's Infant School
	8 EXEMPT Legal Agreement between Haringey Council and St Mary's Infant School
	DraftFundingAgreementLBH_V15_LBH_06.08.25
	Draft Deed of Surrender_agreed_FINAL_06.08.25
	Licence  to  occupy_Agreed_final
	Letter of extension to Licence_agreed_06.8.25
	Exempt APPENDIX  Legal Agreement between Haringey Council and St Mary's Infant Final


